CITY OF RICHARDSON
CITY PLAN COMMISSION MINUTES - OCTOBER 9, 2014

The Richardson City Plan Commission met on October 9, 2014, at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall in the
Council Chambers, 411 W. Arapaho Road, Richardson, Texas.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Barry Hand, Chairman
Gerald Bright, Vice Chair
Janet DePuy, Commissioner
Eron Linn, Commissioner
Randy Roland, Commissioner
Stephen Springs, Alternate

MEMBERS ABSENT: Marilyn Frederick, Commissioner
Thomas Maxwell, Commissioner
Bill Ferrell, Alternate

CITY STAFF PRESENT: Sam Chavez, Assistant Director — Dev. Svcs — Planning
Israel Roberts, Development Review Manager
Chris Shacklett, Sr. Planner
Mohamed Bireima, Planning Technician
Kathy Welp, Executive Secretary

BRIEFING SESSION

Prior to the start of the regular business meeting, the City Plan Commission met with staff
regarding staff reports, agenda items and a work session. No action was taken.

MINUTES
1. Approval of the minutes of the regular business meeting of September 16, 2014.

Commissioner Linn requested to have the words “recused himself” added to the Note before
Item 7, and Ms. Welp informed the Commission of a correction to the spelling of an
individual’s last name.

Motion: Commissioner DePuy made a motion to approve the minutes as corrected; second
by Commissioner Linn. Motion passed 6-0.

CONSENT ITEMS

All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Plan Commission and
will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below. There will be no separate discussion of these
items unless desired, in which case any item(s) may be removed from the Consent Agenda for separate
consideration.

2. Site and Landscape Plans — Datacenter Park (companion to Item 6): A request for
approval of a site and landscape plan for the development of a 138,185-square foot data
center located at 907 Security Row. The property is currently zoned I-FP(2) Industrial.

3. Amending Plat — Il Creeks Addition: A request for approval of an amending plat to
combine two residential lots into a single lot. The lots are located at 2646 and 2650
Provencial Lane and zoned PD Planned Development.



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

October 9, 2014

Motion: Vice Chair Bright made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented;
second by Commissioner Springs. Motion approved 6-0.

VARIANCE

4. Variance 14-05 — Jupiter Shopping Center: Consider and take necessary action on a
request for a variance from Chapter 21 of the Subdivision and Development Code, for a
reduction in parking to accommodate a restaurant. The site is located at the southwest corner
of President George Bush Highway and Jupiter Road and is zoned LR-M(2) Local Retail.

Mr. Bireima stated the applicant was requesting a five-space reduction in the number of
required parking spaces to accommodate a proposed restaurant at the shopping center at 3601
N. Jupiter Road, southwest corner of President George Bush Turnpike and Jupiter Road. He
added that the proposed restaurant would occupy approximately 1,600 square feet on the
west side of the existing 7-Eleven store.

Mr. Bireima said that based on the current tenant roster, 55 parking spaces are required, but
only 50 spaces are provided. However, a parking study was conducted by the applicant and
verified by staff that the peak parking demand at lunch time on work days was only 28
spaces.

Mr. Bireima concluded his presentation by stating that no correspondence had been received
regarding the variance request and the applicant was present to answer any questions.

With no questions for staff, Chairman Hand asked if the applicant wanted to make a
statement.

Mr. Kenneth Norvorr, 6121 Tremont Street, Dallas, said they were working on leasing the
space in question to a barbeque restaurant and the 800-square foot space next door will be
leased by a pizza restaurant that will only have take-out.

No other comments were received.

Chairman Hand asked if there was anything proposed for the triangle shaped piece of land
just northwest of the applicant’s location.

Mr. Roberts replied that there was a zoning application in previous years for a small retail,
but was never developed.

Commissioner DePuy said she was in favor of the applicant’s request.

Motion: Vice Chair Bright made a motion to recommend approval of Variance 14-05;
second by Commissioner Roland. Motion approved 6-0.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-10-09 Minutes.doc 2



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

October 9, 2014

PUBLIC HEARINGS

5. Replat — Synergy Park Addition: Consider and take necessary action on a request for
approval of a replat of Lot 4, Block A of the Synergy Park Addition into two lots. The site is
located on the south side of President George Bush Highway, west of Waterview Parkway
and is zoned TO-M Technical Office.

Mr. Roberts stated the applicant was requesting a replat of Lot 4, Block A to divide the
property into two (2) lots for possible future development, and pointed out that no easements
were being dedicated or abandoned and the replat complied with City standards.

With no questions for staff, Chairman Hand opened the public hearing.

No comments or questions were received in favor or opposed and Chairman Hand closed the
public hearing.

Motion: Commissioner DePuy made a motion to approve ltem 5 as presented; second by
Commissioner Roland. Motion approved 6-0.

6. Replat — Collins Technology Park Addition (companion to Item 2): Consider and take
necessary action on a request for approval of a replat of Lots 4C and 6B, Block 1 of the
Collins Technology Park Addition into three (3) lots. The site is located at 907 Security
Row, 1215 Integrity Drive and 908 Quality Way and is zoned I-FP(2).

Mr. Roberts advised the proposed replat would divide the property into three (3) lots to
accommodate the development of a 138,000 square foot data center on proposed Lot 14. He
added that proposed Lots 4D has an existing building and no changes were projected for that
site, and Lot 6C is currently vacant and no changes were proposed.

Mr. Roberts said the replat met the City’s design standards.
With no questions for staff, Chairman Hand opened the public hearing.

No comments or questions were received in favor or opposed and Chairman Hand closed the
public hearing.

Motion: Vice Chair Bright made a motion to approve Iltem 6 as presented; second by
Commissioner Linn. Motion approved 6-0.

7. Replat — Richardson Industrial Park Addition: Consider and take necessary action on a
request for approval of a replat of Lot 13A of the Richardson Industrial Park Addition to
dedicate easements. The site is located at 300 E. Arapaho Road and is zoned for the I-M(1)
Industrial District and the 1-FP(2) Industrial Fire Proof District.

Mr. Roberts said the requested replat would dedicate the easements that correspond with the
final construction of the City’s gymnastic center. He added that no other changes were
planned for the site at the current time.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-10-09 Minutes.doc 3



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

October 9, 2014

With no questions for staff, Chairman Hand opened the public hearing.

No comments or questions were received in favor or opposed and Chairman Hand closed the
public hearing.

Motion: Commissioner Roland made a motion to approve Item 7 as presented,

Commissioner Springs stated he would abstain from voting on the motion since
his firm had participated in the design of the center.

Mr. Chavez said that was not necessary since the building had already been
completed and the replat was only for the easements.

Second by Commissioner DePuy. Motion approved 6-0.

8. Zoning File 14-28 — Hertz Car Rental: Consider and take necessary action on a request for
approval of a Special Permit for a motor vehicle rental located in a single-tenant building and
offering more than ten (10) vehicles for rent in conjunction with motor vehicle sales/leasing —
used. The property is zoned C-M Commercial and located at 233 N. Central Expressway,
west side of the expressway, north of Belt Line Road.

Mr. Shacklett advised the applicant was requesting a Special Permit to allow motor vehicle
rental in a single-tenant building as well as allowing more than 10 vehicles for rent in
conjunction with a motor vehicles sales and leasing business located at 233 N. Central
Expressway.

Mr. Shacklett pointed out that earlier in the year the previous tenant, a used car sales business
that was a legal non-conforming use, moved out of the location and Hertz moved in within
the necessary time frame to grandfather the non-conforming status of the vehicle sales
portion of the business. In addition, Hertz was trying to consolidate their sales and rental
operations by moving their store at 318 S. Central Expressway to the proposed location.

Mr. Shacklett said that in addition to the applicant updating the building with painting and
new signs, staff was requesting additional trees and screening shrubs along Central
Expressway, as well as shrubs in the back of the business along Custer Road to screen the
parking lot.

Mr. Shacklett noted that the applicant’s property was included in the Main Street/Central
Redevelopment/Enhancement Study area that will be coming before the Commission for
rezoning in the near future. He added that if the current request was approved by the
Commission and then the Main/Central rezoning was approved, it would be possible the
current and previous Special Permits would go away and the car sales and rental would both
become legal non-conforming uses.

Mr. Shacklett concluded his presentation by noting that no correspondence, either in support
or opposed, had been received.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-10-09 Minutes.doc 4



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

October 9, 2014

Chairman Hand asked for clarification on the piece of adjacent property used for parking by
Hertz.

Mr. Shacklett the property is actually part of the Benefits Store property, but is under a
shared access agreement with Hertz.

Commissioner Linn asked for clarification on the status of the Special Permit if the
Main/Central Study was approved.

Mr. Shacklett said that if the City Council supports the current request, the car rental portion
of the business would be considered legal conforming because of the approved Special
Permit. However, if the Main/Central study is adopted by the City at a future date, and the
City Council’s motion does not specifically save the proposed Special Permit, both the sales
and rental of vehicles would be considered legally non-conforming and could continue to
operate as a used car sales and rental until they either change to a conforming use or the
property is vacant for more than six months.

Commissioner Linn asked what would happen after six months if the property remained
vacant.

Mr. Shacklett replied that if the property was vacant for more than six months the legal non-
conforming rights will be lost.

Commissioner DePuy asked if the Main/Central study was approved and the property was
non-conforming, would the applicant be able to make improvements or expand the property
under the new guidelines.

Mr. Shacklett said it would depend on how the new PD or zoning district was written, but if
the property was a standard non-conforming use they would most likely only be allowed to
maintain basic health and safety standards. He added that the applicant was aware of this
possibility.

With no further questions for the staff, Chairman Hand opened the public hearing.

Mr. Ed Voss of Brown and Hoffmeister, representing the applicant, 740 E. Campbell Road,
Richardson, Texas, stated he understood the concerns about car uses expressed during the
joint City Council/City Plan Commission meeting in September, but pointed out that what
Hertz was proposing to do would not alter what is already present, but they are trying to
combine two locations into one making a more efficient operation and improving the site.

Chairman Hand asked about the comments regarding combining two locations and wanted to
know the location of both sites.

Mr. Voss replied that the sales location is at 233 N. Central Expressway and the rental
location is at 318 S. Central Expressway.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-10-09 Minutes.doc 5



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

October 9, 2014

With no further questions or comments in favor or opposed, Chairman Hand closed the
public hearing.

Commissioner DePuy said she appreciated the fact that the applicant had improved the look
of the property especially since it is adjacent to a residential neighborhood. She added there
were some concerns on what would happen if and when the Main/Central zoning was
approved, but felt that as long as the applicant was aware of the possibilities she did not have
any problem with approving the request.

Chairman Hand asked if the back parking area off Custer Road was factored into the parking
requirements. He also wanted to know if a vehicles would be brought to the site on an auto
transport and where would that large truck park.

Mr. Shacklett replied the parking for motor vehicles sales requires the same parking as retail
sales based on square footage, and the rental portion would usually be parked at the office
rate; however, the applicant was assuming the office parking ratio for the entire lot, which
required 11 parking spaces and the applicant was providing 26 spaces.

Regarding bringing vehicles to the site, Mr. VVoss said vehicles would be brought to the site
both by individual drivers and occasionally by auto transport trucks, but he was not sure
where the transport trucks would off load.

Chairman Hand said he was ambivalent about auto uses on US 75 because if they were left
unchecked the sites could deteriorate. He added that closing the smaller facility and
incorporating the rentals into the sales site could provide an amenity to the neighborhood.

Commissioner Linn stated that based on some of the comments from the joint meeting with
the City Council, he felt uses like the one proposed would be excluded and asked if it would
be possible to table the discussion until after the Main/Central study had been acted on then
go forward with the current request.

Mr. Shacklett replied that it would depend on what was approved by the City Council and if
the base zoning was changed for the area. Mr. Chavez added that the development and
major/minor modification requirements for the new Main Central Districts could dictate what
would be allowed.

Commissioner Linn said he thought it would be best to wait to go through the Main/Central
study process then come back and revisit the item.

Commissioner Springs asked if the existing rental location was operating under a Special
Permit.

Mr. Shacklett replied that it was not under a Special Permit and thought it was a legal
conforming use.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-10-09 Minutes.doc 6



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

October 9, 2014

Vice Chair Bright and Commissioner DePuy said they agreed with Mr. Hand’s comment
about providing an additional amenity for the neighborhood and did not see how waiting for
the study to be concluded would change anything.

Chairman Hand asked if the enhancement/redevelopment zone was approved, would it be a
PD and would it remove all previous Special Permits.

Mr. Shacklett replied that if the property was rezoned and the new zoning did not specifically
save any previous Special Permits, the permits would be removed and the property would
come under the new base zoning.

Motion: Commissioner Springs made a motion to recommend approval of Zoning File 14-
28 as presented including the listed special conditions; second by Commissioner
Roland. Motion approved 5-1 with Commissioner Linn opposed.

9. Zoning File 14-29 — Golden Chick: Consider and take necessary action on a request for
revocation of Ordinance 2885-A, approval of a Special Permit for a restaurant with drive-thru
service, change in zoning from LR-M(1) Local Retail, LR-M(2) Local Retail with special
conditions, C-M Commercial with special conditions to LR-M(1) Local Retail. The property
is a 0.843-acre tract of land located at 445 W. Arapaho Road, southwest corner of Arapaho
Road and Civic Center Drive.

Mr. Shacklett said the request was proposing to revoke the existing multiple zonings on the
property and consolidate the property into one zoning district, LR-M(1) Local Retail, update
special conditions as it pertains to the drive-thru, and incorporate the vacant property directly
to the south to provide additional parking for the restaurant.

Mr. Shacklett stated in addition to the proposed changes to the parking and the drive-thru, the
applicant was proposing to increase the inbound radius on the western most driveway to
make vehicle movement into the site easier, and removal of angled parking on the east side
of the drive-thru lane and replace it with parallel parking, which would provide enough room
for a fire lane.

Mr. Shacklett noted that during discussions with the applicant staff had suggested other
modifications to the site to address landscape inadequacies, on-site vehicle conflicts, simplify
circulation, and address safety issues at the driveways. He added that some of the
suggestions were incorporated in the applicant’s request and others were not.

Another change suggested by staff was to remove the parking space at the northeast corner of
the parking lot and finish out the full 20-foot radius adding a landscape island to protect the
vehicles in that area and add a 20-foot landscape island at the southeast driveway, which is
the City standard to have islands at the end of parking rows.

Mr. Shacklett concluded his presentation by providing building elevations that would be tied
to the Special Permit and stating that no correspondence had been received either in support
or opposition.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-10-09 Minutes.doc 7



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

October 9, 2014

Vice Chair Bright asked if applicant did not make the change to the throat depth on the
western most driveway, would the other changes to the access easement, parallel parking and
removing a parking space at the northeast corner of the property make sense.

Mr. Shacklett replied that all the suggested changes along Arapaho Road played off one
another and if made together provided the safest option and would keep circulation flowing
through the site. However, he felt the landscape island and the parallel parking could be
done exclusive of the other suggested changes, but there would still be a safety concern for
vehicles backing out of the spaces at the northwest corner of the property because they would
be backing into traffic trying to enter the site.

Commissioner DePuy said she would hate for the applicant to lose the patio area, but wanted
to talk about closing the access between the two properties and removing the two parking
spaces at the northwest corner of the property.

Mr. Shacklett replied that closing the access and removing the two parking spaces would not
prevent vehicles from leaving the drive through and coming across lanes of on-site traffic.

Commissioner DePuy said she was concerned about the proposed landscape buffer between
the two northern driveways affecting the outdoor patio area. She also wanted to know if the
two parking spaces at the northwest corner were closed, and the landscape buffer was
smaller, could the patio remain as is.

Mr. Shacklett replied his assumption was correct that if the landscape buffer was constructed
it would move the driving aisle south and part of the patio area would be affected. He added
that if the parking spaces were closed and the landscape buffer was reduced in size it might
be possible to keep the patio.

Commissioner Springs asked if the structure in the southwest corner of the property was
going to remain. He also noted that since the structure was on the property line did it meet
the City’s code.

Mr. Shacklett replied that buildings are allowed on property lines in non-residential zoning
district, subject to meeting the Building Code, and it was the applicant’s intent to keep the
storage structure.

Commissioner Roland noted that the new parking the applicant was proposing did not seem
to be the major focus of the staff’s comments and asked if the suggested changes were a way
of clearing up past inconsistencies.

Mr. Shacklett said the only issue the staff had with the new parking, as it related to City
codes, was the width of the landscape buffer, and if the applicant increased the buffer to 10
feet a row of parking would be lost. However, it is standard practice when a zoning request
is submitted for the staff to request changes where items do not meet current City codes or
areas where there could be safety concerns as in the current case where it relates to some of
the driveways.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-10-09 Minutes.doc 8



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

October 9, 2014

Commissioner Roland asked if there was a requirement to have handicap parking spaces
adjacent to a building or, as proposed, it was acceptable to have them across the driving aisle.
He also wanted to confirm there would be a new dumpster enclosure.

Mr. Shacklett replied there are standards that have to be met if the spaces are not directly
adjacent to the building.

Regarding the dumpster enclosure, Shacklett said the new location would be at the southern
edge of the property just in front of the new parking area.

Commissioner Springs asked if the rezoning was an attempt to clean up the multiple zonings
currently on the property.

Mr. Shacklett replied that was correct, plus it would remove some of the old obsolete special
conditions from the previous ordinance.

Commissioner Linn asked if the property was currently under parked and wanted to know
what net gain the new parking lot would provide. He also wanted to know how the
recommendations from staff would impact the number of parking spaces.

Mr. Shacklett replied that if staff’s recommendations were followed, four spaces would be
removed and with the new parking spaces added on the southern edge of the property there
would be a net gain of 9 parking spaces.

Commissioner Linn asked for clarification on not incorporating all of the staff’s
recommendations and which of the recommendations did the applicant include in their
request

Mr. Shacklett said in meetings with the applicant, it was stated that since the applicant had
been at the location for 20 years without any incidents, all they wanted to do was add
additional parking. He added that the recommendations they did incorporate was moving the
dumpster to the new location, removing angled parking and adding parallel parking on the
east side of the drive-thru lane, increasing the radius on the inbound driveway, additional
landscaping along Civic Center Drive, and adding directional striping in the parking lot.

Commissioner DePuy asked for a description of the new enclosure on the front of the
building and would that addition be the reason for the requested additional parking. She also
wanted to know if there was a pergola at the front of the business.

Mr. Shacklett replied that even without the proposed enclosure the popularity of the
restaurant was the impetus for adding more parking, and the structure at the front of the
building is an arbor.

Commissioner Linn asked if the proposed addition of the new parking area created a flag lot.

Mr. Shacklett said no, because the lot had frontage on two sides.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-10-09 Minutes.doc 9



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
October 9, 2014

Chairman Hand wanted to know if it was preferential to have cross access between
commercial properties.

Mr. Shacklett replied that typically cross access was preferable, but with the current case it is
the location that causes the concern. He added that staff was not asking for the driveway
connection to be closed but simply to remove the two parking spaces.

With no further questions for staff Chairman Hand opened the public hearing.

Mr. Mark Parmerlee, 1131 Rockingham, Richardson, Texas, stated that he had agreed to
make some of the changes proposed by staff including:

— Adding the radius cut on the northwest driveway

— Moving the dumpster

— Widening the drive-thru lane

— Removing the angled parking spaces

— Adding the parallel parking spaces

— Creating a fire lane

— Creating a visibility triangle in the northeast corner of the property

Mr. Parmerlee said he did not want to close the access between his property and the property
to the west because he felt it provided the safest way to get to the signal light at Custer Road
to go west on Arapaho Road. He added that if all the recommendations were implemented it
would not be worth it financially for a net gain of only 8 parking spaces.

Vice Chair Bright asked how many tables were in the patio area and was that the same area
where the new enclosure would be located. He also wanted to know how often the outdoor
seating was utilized.

Mr. Parmerlee replied that when the new enclosure is built, the pergola will be pushed out
and there will be fixed and loose tables. He added that the outdoor seating was utilized on a
seasonal basis.

Commissioner Linn asked why the striping suggested by the staff was not included by the
applicant.

Mr. Parmerlee said he did not want to lose another parking space, but they were pushing back
the space from where it is currently located to accommodate the fire lane and adjust the
curbing on the exit.

Commissioner DePuy said she did not like the parallel parking spots and wondered if they
would be used.

Mr. Shacklett said that as proposed it would be easy to use the parallel parking spaces and the
reason for the landscape islands for those spaces were the City’s standards that require
landscape islands at the end of parking rows.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-10-09 Minutes.doc 10



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

October 9, 2014

Commissioner Linn asked the applicant why he did not accept all the staff’s
recommendations.

Mr. Parmerlee replied it was a matter of cost benefit and if all of the suggestions were
incorporated the cost would be over one hundred thousand dollars with a net gain of 8
parking spaces.

Vice Chair Bright said he liked staff’s recommendations and was ready to agree with those
recommendations until the comment was made that the applicant was only trying to increase
his available parking.

Commissioner Roland stated he appreciated staff’s efforts to bring the site up to current code
standards, and acknowledged that the applicant had incorporated some of the staff’s
recommendations, but said he would have liked to see more of the recommendations
included in the applicant’s proposal which would help with traffic safety in the area.

Chairman Hand commented that he could understand both sides of the issue, and the site
could stand to be updated, but felt there was room for compromise between the applicant and
the City. He also felt strongly that the access between the two properties needed to be
designated as a pass through or parking and not used for both.

Mr. Shacklett replied that staff was not requesting the changes for the purpose of getting
more landscaping, but to increase the throat depth of the driveway. The area where City
policies came into play was at the end of the parking aisles where landscape islands were
required.

Vice Chair Bright asked staff if the throat depth was not increased, could changes be made to
the northeast and northwest areas of the property that would improve safety. He also wanted
to know if that assumption was correct, how many parking spaces would be available.

Mr. Shacklett replied that if the throat depth was not increased, the other changes could be
made to improve safety and would still leave 41 parking spaces for the business.

Mr. Chavez stated that whenever an application was presented to the City, the staff
endeavored to make improvements to the site, especially as it pertained to safety issues,
which was the case with the current application.

Chairman Hand reiterated that the site had some deficiencies that needed to be addressed and
asked the applicant if addressing those issues was part of his plan.

Mr. Parmerlee said he would be happy to take care of those issues.

Commissioner Roland asked if the throat depth of the northwest driveway would be
increased if the parking spaces/pass through area was designated as pass through only. He
also wanted to know if increasing the throat depth at the northeast driveway would help with
vehicles making a right turn.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-10-09 Minutes.doc 11



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

October 9, 2014

Mr. Shacklett replied that he did not think so because staff’s concerns pertained not only to
vehicles backing out into the traffic coming into the site, but also with vehicles cutting across
the incoming traffic lanes.

Regarding the northeast driveway, Mr. Shacklett said it would allow more separation from
Arapaho Road for the vehicle parked in the first space and would provide an adequate radius.

Commissioner Roland said he thought the increased landscape buffer between the two
driveways might be non-negotiable with the applicant because it would affect the seating
capacity of the business, but thought there might be a way to incorporate some changes to
increase safety for the driving public.

Mr. Chavez replied that staff’s recommendations would provide safety for the driving public.

Chairman Hand suggested the following to improve the site, minimize the cost to the
applicant, and address the safety issues:

— Remove the two parking spaces and closing the access at the northwest portion of the
property;

— Remove one parking space and increase the landscape buffer at the northeast portion
of the property; and

— Add a landscape island and the end of the parking row along Civic Center Drive.

Commissioner DePuy agreed with the changes to the two driveway areas, but was not as
concerned with the landscape island along Civic Center Drive.

Vice Chair Bright asked staff the purpose of the proposed landscape at the end of the driving
aisle and was that a safety feature.

Mr. Shacklett replied that the landscape island was City policy and in addition to providing a
canopy tree, would extend to the back of the parking and prevents an incoming vehicle from
possibly hitting a parked car.

Chairman Hand stated his remarks were rooted in protecting those moving in and out of
parking spaces, which the changes to the northeast and northwest would provide.

Mr. Parmerlee said the reason he did follow staff’s recommendations regarding the northeast
corner of property was that most traffic going eastbound on Arapaho Road uses the northwest
driveway to enter the property and the northeast is used to exit the property. He added he
would prefer to leave the northwest access point open, but remove the two parking spaces.

Commissioner Springs stated that it would be hard to make everyone happy, but felt an
access easement at the northwest corner should be made part of the motion as a requirement.
In addition, he felt the changes to the center of the site were not a priority, but agreed the
buffer at the northeast was doable.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-10-09 Minutes.doc 12



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

October 9, 2014

10.

Mr. Chavez stated that staff’s recommendations includes requiring the applicant to get an off-
site access easement; however, if the applicant was unable to get the easement he would have
to come back before the Commission to amend the Special Permit to close the drive aisle
before he could proceed with any of the other proposed changes. He added that the motion
could state the access easement must be obtained or the area must be closed off.

Vice Chair Bright asked if an either/or contingent was placed on the access easement would
there be a time limit on the process.

Mr. Shacklett replied that unless the applicant obtained the easement, whether it was through
the northwest corner or the southern part of the property, the development plans would not be
processed for the remainder of the proposed changes.

Chairman Hand asked if it would make sense to table the item and let the applicant review
some of his options.

Mr. Shacklett replied that if the applicant wanted to table the item that would be fine, but
wanted the Commission to understand that a recordable access agreement for moving
vehicles in and out of the property would be needed either way.

Mr. Chavez suggested adding wording to the motion at the end of Item D of the special
conditions that requires obtaining an access easement or removal of the two parking spaces.

Motion: Vice Chair Bright made a motion to recommend approval of Zoning File 14-29 as
presented with the addition of the following two conditions at the end of Item D:

— “In the event an access easement is not acquired, the drive aisle shall be
closed and landscape with the site plan reflecting the same; and

— The parking space at the northeast corner of the parking lot will be removed
and the area will be landscaped.”

Second by Commissioner Springs. Motion approved 6-0.

Zoning File 14-30 — Ingram Terrace Patio Home Development: Consider and take
necessary action on a request for approval for a change in zoning from LR-M(2) Local Retail
with special conditions to PD Planned Development for the development of a maximum 64-
home patio home community on approximately 8.63 acres. The property is located at the
northeast corner of Renner Road and Brand Road.

Mr. Shacklett stated the applicant was requesting to rezone the northeast corner of Renner
Road and Brand Road from LR-M(2) Local Retail to PD Planned Development (PD) to
accommodate the development of a private, gated patio home community with a base zoning
of RP-1500-M having two points of ingress to the community — one along Renner Road for
residents, and an emergency access along Brand Road and with a requested density of 7.5
homes per acre.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-10-09 Minutes.doc 13



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
October 9, 2014

Mr. Shacklett stated the applicant was proposing to provide a median cut along Renner Road
to match up with the access point for the residents, which would require removing the
existing masonry wall and some of the trees in the median. The trees to be relocated, if
possible, to another area, but the wall would not be reconstructed.

Mr. Shacklett said the project was very similar to the Savoy Landing and Savoy Trace
projects in that there would be minimum 3,600 square foot lots and minimum 1,800 square
foot homes. He added they would not necessarily be zero-lot line homes because standard
patio home are built on the property line and on the other side there would be a 10-foot
setback or the developer could center the home on the lot with 5-foot setbacks on either side.

Mr. Shacklett noted the applicant was proposing to install a 30-foot landscape buffer,
meandering sidewalks and berms around the development, which are common to many
subdivisions in that part of the City.

Mr. Shacklett reported the applicant had committed to adding a number of canopy and
ornamental trees to the open space areas adjacent to the front entry, but had not determined
what they would do with those lots other than designating one for possible future amenities
(pool or playground). He added the applicant was also requesting a decorative guard shack
(unmanned) at the front entry.

In closing his comments, Mr. Shacklett pointed out the applicant was requesting restrictions
for accessory structures (except arbors), requirements for carriage style garage doors, not
allowing fences within 10 feet of pavement, and waivers for alleys and interior sidewalks.

Commissioner Roland asked why the applicant was not proposing to have another gated
entrance off Brand Road instead of just an emergency access gate. He also wanted to know
if a Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) had been completed and did it reflect theoretical
information or actual hard counts of vehicles.

Mr. Shacklett said from a safety standpoint the main entrance and the emergency access
point met the requirements, but suggested the applicant might be better able to address how
another entrance would affect their development.

Regarding the TIA, Mr. Shacklett stated the analysis looked at the traffic generated if a retail
center was developed under the current zoning as opposed to the traffic that would be
generated by the proposed residential development.

Commissioner Roland stated that if the information was more theoretical then how would the
actual be addressed citing the current state of traffic that flows through the area especially
with the elementary school activity in the morning. He also wanted to know if there would
be a curb cut on Brand Road.

Mr. Shacklett said a median cut would not be allowed on Brand Road so most of the traffic
would have to go through the entrance on Renner Road.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-10-09 Minutes.doc 14



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes

October 9, 2014

Commissioner Roland asked if the applicant was not asking for a 5-foot lot width variance,
how many houses would be built in the development.

Mr. Shacklett estimated there would be approximately a 10 percent decrease in the number of
homes.

Commissioner DePuy asked for clarification on the placement of the homes on the lots and
would the homes be considered zero lot line or patio homes. She also wanted to know if the
master bedrooms would be on the ground floor.

Mr. Shacklett replied that whether the homes were on the property line or center loaded;
there would always be 10 feet between structures. He added that the City’s ordinance defines
a patio home as one built on the property line.

Regarding the location of the master bedrooms, Mr. Shacklett reminded the Commission that
during the development of the Savoy Trace property the applicant had asked for master
bedrooms upstairs, but realized after discussions with Ms. DePuy and Ms. Frederick that
having the master bedroom on the ground floor was a better option.

With no other questions for staff, Chairman Hand opened the public hearing.

Mr. Matt Torbit, David Weekley Homes, 3301 N. Hwy 35, Carrollton, Texas, complimented
staff on their presentation and stated he was available for any questions.

Commissioner DePuy asked the applicant to address the master bedroom question.

Mr. Torbit replied that all the plans in the Savoy projects have master bedrooms on the first
floor and it would be the same in the proposed project.

Commissioner Roland asked the applicant to comment on traffic in the area and the
possibility of a second gated entrance. He also wanted to know if applicant was going to
forewarn potential home buyers of the active ball parks across the street as well as the nearby
fire station.

Mr. Torbit said if another entrance was constructed on Brand Road it would cause traffic to
U-turn to get back to Renner Road, which would increase the traffic in front of the
elementary school. He said they would make potential buyers aware of the ball fields and
fire station.

Commissioner DePuy asked what the price point would be on the homes.
Mr. Torbit replied it would be in the area of four hundred thousand dollars.
Commissioner Linn asked if David Weekley Homes would also be the builder.

Mr. Torbit replied that they would be the developer as well as the builder.

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-10-09 Minutes.doc 15



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes
October 9, 2014

With no further comments or questions in favor or opposed, Chairman Hand closed the
public hearing.

Commissioner Linn stated he was satisfied with the Savoy projects, but felt those projects
were different because they were not adjacent to residential areas and was disappointed there
was no feedback from the local homeowners associations. He also thought the price point
was a little high, but would fit in nicely with the adjacent neighborhoods.

Commissioner Roland replied that he was the president of his homeowners association and
the majority of the feedback he received was “better residential than commercial.”

Chairman Hand asked why the applicant was requesting a Planned Development as opposed
to a straight zoning district.

Mr. Shacklett said rezoning to a residential district would require larger lots; therefore,
diminishing the number of lots available as well as requiring alleys. Also, a PD would
provide more control over the design of the community than a standard residential district.

Chairman Hand said he was not a big fan of gated communities, but felt the market would
support the development and residential was better than commercial.

Vice Chair Bright asked if the Savoy projects had interior sidewalks.

Mr. Shacklett said they did not.

Motion: Vice Chair Bright made a motion to recommend approval of Zoning File 14-30 as
presented including the listed special conditions; second by Commissioner
DePuy. Motion approved 6-0.

ADJOURN

With no further business before the Commission, Chairman Hand adjourned the regular business
meeting at 9:55 p.m.

Barry Hand, Chairman
City Plan Commission

Ds:CPC/2014/2014-10-09 Minutes.doc 16



